
 1  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

 

 

 
Minutes 

WATER RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMISSION 
Monthly Meeting 

August 08, 2013, 9:00 AM 
Indian Riverside Park 

Frances Langford Dockside Pavilion 
Jensen Beach, FL 34957 

 
FINAL REVISED 09/20/2013 3:58 PM 

Attendee Name Title Status 
Timothy Sargent Chair Present 
Kevin Powers Vice-Chair Present 
Douglas Yoder Alternate for John Renfrow Absent 
Samantha Whitcraft Alternate for John Lamkin Absent 
D. Albrey Arrington WRAC/Utility Present 
Shelley Vana WRAC/Local Government Absent 
Douglas Bournique WRAC/Agriculture Present 
Bob Ulevich Alternate for Doug Bournique Present 
Chuck Collins State Absent 
Ray Scott State Present 
Vincent Encomio Alternate for Mark Perry Absent 
Jim Reynolds WRAC/Utility Present 
John Renfrow WRAC/Utility Absent 
Michael Harford WRAC/Local Government Absent 
Mark Perry WRAC/Environmental Present 
James Humble WRAC/Agriculture Present 
Kristin Jacobs WRAC/Local Government Absent 
George Jones WRAC/Public Interest Present 
William "Chad" Kennedy State Absent 
John Lamkin Federal Absent 
Joan Lawrence Federal Present 
Barbara Miedema WRAC/Agriculture Present 
Linda McCarthy Alternate for Bubba Wade Present 
Kimberly Lawrence Alternate for Michael Harford Present 
Newton Cook WRAC/Public Interest Present 
Don Fox Alternate for Chuck Collins Present 
Mary Ann Martin WRAC/Public Interest Present 



 2  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

Bevin Beaudet Alternate for Shelley Vana Present 
Joe Capra WRAC/Business Present 
Bud Howard Alternate for Albrey Arrington Absent 
Michael Collins WRAC/Public Interest Present 
Medora Krome Alternate for James Humble Absent 
James Erskine Tribal Present 
Dennis Duke Alternate for Joan Lawrence Absent 
John Lesman WRAC/Business Present 
Ashley Tripp Alternate for Mary Ann Martin Present 
Maelo Reyes Alternate for Jeff Schmidt Absent 
Rich Budell Alternate for Ray Scott Absent 
Malcolm Wade WRAC/Agriculture Present 
Jacqui Thurlow-Lippisch Alternate for Joe Capra Present 
Thomas Greco Federal Present 
Neale Montgomery WRAC/Business Present 
Harry Raucher WRAC/Utility Absent 
Joshua Kellam WRAC/Business Present 
Cherise Maples Tribal Absent 
Erin Deady WRAC/Environmental Absent 
Jane Graham WRAC/Environmental Present 
Nancy Payton WRAC/Environmental Present 
Jenny Conner Nelms WRAC/Environmental Absent 
Lance R. Bennett WRAC/Business Present 
Deena M. Reppen WRAC/Local Government Present 
Karson Turner WRAC/Local Government Absent 
Tom Jones WRAC/Business Absent 
Brian L. Wheeler WRAC/Utility Absent 
Pam Keyes WRAC/Utility Absent 
Kurt Harclerode Alternate for Pam Keyes Present 
Adam Gelber WRAC/Public Interest Present 
Jason Liechty Alternate for Kristin Jacobs Present 
Jeff Schmidt Federal Absent 
Mike Sweeney Alternate for Brian Wheeler Absent 
Mark Dombroski Alternate for Newton Cook Absent 
Harry Cronin Alternate for Jim Reynolds Absent 
Susan Kaynor Alternate for Tom Greco Absent 
Pat Martin Alternate for Harry Raucher Absent 
Jeff Ward Alternate for Barbara Miedema Absent 
 

1. Call to Order - Tim Sargent, WRAC Chairman 
Mr. Sargent called the meeting to order at 9:05 AM and announced that item 6, 
Public Use Rule 40E-7 was removed.  He also introduced WRAC Vice-Chairman, 
Kevin Powers and fellow governing board member Jim Moran. 

 



 3  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

Mr. Powers welcomed the public and introduced the following elected officials: 
Representative Gayle Harrell, Representative Larry Lee, Pepper Uchino (Senate 
Select Committee on Indian River Lagoon and Lake Okeechobee Basin), Michelle 
McGovern (US Senator Bill Nelson), Commissioner Sarah Heard, Commissioner Ed 
Fielding, Commissioner Anne Scott, Commissioner Doug Smith, Commissioner 
Jacqui Thurlow Lippisch. 
 
Mr. Powers described the WRAC and its role and representative members. 
 
Mr. Sargent thanked the following WRAC members for service: 
 
1. Scott Benyon, Benyon Consulting 
2. Bill Hammond, Kitson Partners 
3. Patrick Hayes, Loxahatchee Coalition 
4. John Hayford, Okeechobee Utility Authority 
5. Kahlil Kettering, National Parks Conservation Association  
6. Larry Hilton, Glades County  
7. Tom Kenny, Seabranch Management 
8. Cheryl Miller, Coastal Eco-Group, Inc.  
9. Jim Murley, Southeast Florida Regional Partnership 
10. Tommy Perry, Johnson-Prewitt and Associates, Inc.  
11. H.M. Ridgely, Evans Properties, Inc. 
12. Michael Tammaro, FPL 
 
Mr. Sargent welcomed the following new WRAC members: 
 
Environmental Sector:  
1. Erin Deady, Erin L. Deady, P.A. 
2. Jane Graham, Audubon  
3. Nancy Payton, Florida Wildlife Federation 
4. Jenny Conner Nelms, The Nature Conservancy 
 
Business Sector:  
5. Josh Kellam, The ESG Companies 
6. Lance Bennett, Poulos and Bennett, LLC 
 
Local Government Sector:  
7. Deena Reppen, Florida Association of Counties 
8. Karson Turner, Chairman, Hendry County Commission 
 
Agriculture Sector:  
9. Tom Jones, Barron Collier Partnership 
 
Utility/Water Supply Sector:  
10. Brian Wheeler, Toho Water Authority 
11. Pam Keyes, Lee County Utilities 
 
Public Interest Sector: 
12. Adam Gelber, Atkins North America  



 4  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

2. SFWMD Staff Reports 
No staff reports. 

3. WRAC Member Issues 
Newton Cook, United WaterFowlers of Florida, announced a WaterFowl Summit in 
Ocala on August 9, 2013 and thanked the District for its support. 
 
Barbara Miedema, Sugarcane Growers Cooperative, recognized the importance of 
all parties meeting to discuss possible short-term solutions to help provide relief to 
the estuary. 
 
Joshua Kellam, The ESG Companies, expressed the importance of staying on 
mission and moving projects forward. 
 
Jane Graham, Audubon Florida, shared that Audubon Florida and sixteen other 
environmental organizations signed a letter urging more ecosystem protection within 
the Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan (LECWSP). 
 
Jason Liechty, Alternate for Broward County Mayor Kristin Jacobs, agreed with Ms. 
Graham regarding including ecosystem protections in the LECWSP and notified the 
group that Broward County had submitted comments regarding the issue. 
 
Neale Montgomery, Pavese Law Firm, urged the District to stay focused on core 
mission and cost efficiencies and to remember the west coast in planning efforts. 
 
Joe Capra, CAPTEC Engineering, Inc., welcomed WRAC members to Martin County 
and looked forward to the day’s discussion 
 
Nancy Payton, Florida Wildlife Federation, requested an update on the 
Caloosahatchee Visioning process at a future WRAC meeting. 
 
James Erskine, Miccosukee Tribe of Indians, discussed the high water levels of 
Water Conservation Area 3A. 
 
Kurt Harclerode, alternate for Pam Keyes Lee County, recognized high water levels 
as a system-wide concern and stressed the importance of all stakeholders working 
together to find short and long-term solutions. 
 
Mary Ann Martin, Roland Martin Marina, commented on the many challenges the 
system faces and the need to focus on solutions such as moving more water south 
and dredging Lake Okeechobee. 
 
Mark Perry, Florida Oceanographic Society, showed WRAC members a sample of 
water from the St. Lucie River and stated that toxic algae blooms and bacteria in the 
water have led to health concerns, and freshwater releases have caused about 
thirty-percent mortality in oyster beds and potential impacts to sea grasses. Mr. 
Perry commented on the negative environmental and economic impacts of Lake 



 5  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

Okeechobee water releases and stated that CEPP would help alleviate stresses of 
water releases to the east and west.  
 
Albrey Arrington, Loxahatchee River District, clarified miscommunication regarding 
Lake Okeechobee releases going out through Jupiter Inlet and stated that the 
Loxahatchee River is not connected to the Lake; however, significant freshwater 
discharges are coming from local basin run-off. 
 
Ashley Tripp, alternate for Mary Ann Martin, Torry Island Recreational Management 
Company, commented that high water levels have washed water lettuce from the 
islands into water ways causing issues for boaters. 
 
General Public Comment:  
 
Commissioner Ed Fielding, Martin County, suggested a flowway be built between 
the New River and Miami that would allow 13 to 15 thousand cfs, provide relief and 
rejuvenate the aquifer. 
 
Pete Quasius, Snook Foundation and Audubon Florida, commented on flows to the 
Caloosahatchee and the need for water conveyance south. 
 
Douglas Ashley, stated that toxic algae is a public health problem. 
 
Commissioner Anne Scott, posed three questions to the group and urged action. 
 
Captain Danny Barrow, Snook and Gamefish Foundation, said that ecosystem is 
collapsing and encouraged completion of C-44 and flowing water south. Mr. Barrow 
asserted that the waterways are being destroyed and negatively impacting the 
economy. 
 
Commissioner Sarah Heard, Martin County, stated that it is time to implement and 
fund the IRL South program as authorized in WRDA 2007. 
 
Charles Grande encouraged the review of Plan 6 which includes a flowway south. 
 
Patrick Hayes, former WRAC member, commented on the need for accountability in 
Washington, DC. 
 
Captain Bruce Roback, Billy Bones Bait and Tackle, said business is suffering from 
all of the fresh water being released into the water ways. 
 
Arlene Brown commented that Indian River lagoon and estuary conditions have 
negatively impacted her children’s business and all water based businesses in the 
area are suffering. 
 
Joanne Carlton Humphries, teacher at Jensen Beach High, said her long-planned 
advanced marine biology class field trips had to be canceled due to water 
conditions.  
 



 6  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

Cathie Dorman, Maximum Diving, stated that her business is suffering and if small 
businesses suffer it will lead to larger economic issues.  
 
Donna Melzer, Martin County Conservation Alliance, said that in the long-term, the 
SFWMD should sponsor CEPP and we need funding and land purchases.  In the 
short-term, water should be sent south to the EAA. 

4. Lake Okeechobee and St. Lucie River and Estuary Water Conditions Update - Ernie 
Barnett, Interim Executive Director, SFWMD 
Ernie Barnett, Interim Executive Director, provided a brief outline of the  
Presentations that would be part of the Lake Okeechobee and St. Lucie River and 
Estuary Water Conditions Update.  
 
A. Tommy Strowd, Assistant Executive Director, Operations, Maintenance and 

Construction, SFWMD provided a Water Conditions Update 
 
B. Terrie Bates, Director, Water Resources Division, SFWMD provided an 

Ecological Conditions Update 
 
C. Lieutenant Colonel Tom Greco, Deputy District Commander for South Florida, 

Jacksonville District, USACE reported on the status of the Herbert Hoover Dike 
and its Operations  

 
D. Jeff Kivett, Director, Operations,  Engineering and Construction Division, 

SFWMD provided a 2013 Wet Season Response presentation   
 
E. Temperince Morgan, Director, Office of Everglades Policy and Coordination, 

SFWMD discussed Near and Long-Term Solutions 
 

Public Comment:  Note public comment was taken prior to WRAC member comment 
on this item. 
 
Nathaniel Osborn, River Kids, said that he was not able to teach his son how to row 
this summer due to water conditions and spoke in support of CEPP.  
 
Mark Nichols, DOA Fishing Lures, asked if water could be stored south of the Lake 
would the agencies and stakeholders hold it there.  
 
Jesse Etelson, Eco-art teacher, discussed the need for tree island habitat 
enhancement through plantings, bio filtration canals and ponds built around WCAs. 
Mr. Etelson stated that ecotourism characteristics are needed. 
 
Amy Datz urged the funding and restoration of the Kissimmee River.  
 
Jacqui Thurlow Lippisch, Town of Sewall’s Point and alternate WRAC member, 
asked that complex issues be simplified in presentations to the public so that all can 
understand issues. 
 



 7  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

Cheryl Neff commented that water conditions are destroying wildlife and the need for 
a solution.  
 
Phillip Roland, Mayor of Clewiston, said Lake levels need to be carefully maintained 
because if Lake levels are allowed to get too high and a storm event occurs there 
could be hurricane Katrina-like damage.  Mr. Roland maintained that the 
straightened Kissimmee River and surrounding water bodies are the main source of 
the pollution issue due to ranch land run-off. 
 
Joe Gilio suggested that Lake Okeechobee muck contains thousands of tons of 
phosphorus that should be suction dredged and EPA constraints are the main 
reason that water cannot flow more to the south and EPA water quality standards 
may be too high to achieve. 
 
Clayton Humphries, Circle I Cattle Ranch, commented that there may be too many 
projects proposed and would like to see some dates and funding for projects 
scheduled to go forward. 
 
Irene Gomes, Owner of Driftwood Motels, stated that water conditions are negatively 
impacting her business and Florida lifestyle, which should be protected. 
 
Matthew Schwartz, South Florida Wildlands Association, said that ecological impacts 
are devastating and supports the idea of a flowway south. Mr. Schwartz stated that 
removing sugar crops would eliminate thousands of pounds of pesticides and 
provide many acres of storage.  
 
Charles Grande, Rivers Coalition, stated that the majority of the planned projects will 
not improve water quality in the IRL, only Plan 6 will allow a flowway and improve 
water conditions. 
 
Rodney Busto, Accuplastics, Inc., suggested the District and stakeholders look into a 
product his company produces to pump ocean water into the St. Lucie River to 
improve salinity. 
 
Dan Gross of Pennsylvania stated that all people contribute to water pollution and 
spoke to the importance of a comprehensive solution.  
 
Fred Humphries spoke about the transition of water bodies from the 1900s to today 
and the complexities of the underground water system. 
 
Annie Potts, Martin county resident, said that the federal government’s Northern 
Everglades National Wildlife Refuge project has been funded along with the state in 
the past and more funds should be available for this type of project. 
 
Kimball Love, former Martin County employee, stated that a past plan for a  regional 
attenuation facility has never been actualized and should be brought on line. Ms. 
Love further commented on the need to include more farmers and ranchers in the 
dispersed water management program especially in the northern Everglades to keep 
water out of the Lake. 



 8  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

 
John Marshall, Arthur Marshall Foundation for the Everglades, stated that the 
Marshall Plan of 1981 to restore sheet flow from the Kissimmee lakes to Florida Bay 
is the best option to resolve the issue and would like to revisit Plan 6. 
 
Written Comments received: 
Paul Milhomme; written comment suggested the use of eminent domain to acquire 
needed land south of Lake Okeechobee. 
 
Gail Milhomme; written comment suggested the use of natural spillways to keep the 
Lake at around 9 feet. 
 
Amanda Ball; written comments suggested that Lake discharges are not a new 
problem and that public officials including Congress and state legislators be 
remembered for positive achievements. 
 
Shannon Wiley; written comments addressed polluted waters. 
 
Sherri Louise Van Osdol; written comments expressed health concerns for her 
children and grandchildren due to consequences of polluted waters. 
 
Cyndi Lenz; written comments mentioned cyanobacteria bloom. 
 
WRAC Member Comment:   
 
Jim Humble said that on average more than seventy percent of discharges do not 
come from Lake Okeechobee and the sugar industry should not bear the full blame 
for poor water conditions and that decisions made regarding possible solutions 
should not be based on emotion that might lead to future mistakes. 
 
Mike Collins discussed the adverse impacts of unmonitored septic tank contribution 
to local water quality and the need to complete the IRL project.  Mr. Collins also 
stated that the federal government has established water quality standards that 
serve as constraints to progress. 
 
Jane Graham, Audubon Florida, agreed that septic tank retrofitting  or replacement 
would help contribute to resolving the water quality problem in the IRL area and that 
Audubon would like to offer that as part of a suite of solutions along with increased 
state and federal funding, congressional authorizations and dispersed water storage. 
Ms. Graham handed out a document containing Audubon suggested solutions.  Ms. 
Graham stated that run-off from the St. Lucie basin contributed to poor water quality 
in the region.  Ms. Graham also spoke about the 2011 drought and the concern the 
public expressed during that time. Additionally Ms. Graham urged the public to 
support the Central Everglades Planning Project (CEPP). 
 
Mark Perry, Florida Oceanographic Society, commented that Martin county has 
taxed themselves and contributed to fund IRL. Mr. Perry also agreed that there is 
local basin run-off that contributes to water quality issues; however, Mr. Perry stated,  
the largest contributor to poor water quality comes from Lake Okeechobee 



 9  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

discharges. Mr. Perry also stated the need of a consolidated report that lists projects 
and their status summarizing cost, authorization status, proposed benefits and 
implementation schedule including Kissimmee River restoration and Ten-Mile Creek.  
Mr. Perry said that the regulation schedule in the Upper Chain of Lakes needs to be 
evaluated and dispersed water storage above the Lake should be sought so that full 
water storage capacity above the Lake can be realized. Mr. Perry stated that a 
solution for moving water south could be developed through a project similar to Plan 
6 and that ASR was not a practical solution. 
 
Mike Collins asked that WRAC members pay attention to the Audit Committee’s 
release of the state-federal cost share report and the amount of credits the state has 
received for CERP. Mr. Collins stated that included with the suggested consolidated 
report, there should be an audit of the projects and an audit of SFWMD obligations, 
and cost-share status.  Mr. Collins agreed that more water could be conveyed south  
if the federal government re-evaluated its water quality standards and not at the 
expense of agriculture in the EAA.  Mr. Collins also stated that all viable options 
should be considered including ASR as part of the solution. 
 
Bubba Wade, US Sugar Corporation, commented that variations of Plan 6 should be 
vetted out with the SFWMD and the Corps, but if the only solution is to flood the EAA 
then that solution is not viable.  Mr. Wade stated that water quality in the EAA has 
improved to 20 ppb coming out of the stormwater treatment area due to the success 
of the farmer BMP program and close to reaching water quality standards.  Mr. 
Wade commented that if Restoration Strategies and CEPP were implemented then 
water quality and hydrology would be met in that region.  Mr. Wade said the state 
and federal government would be reluctant to send polluted water south into these 
improved conditions. Mr. Wade encouraged the community to support completion of 
the C-44 and other projects that would improve water quality going into the estuary. 
 
Jane Graham asked Jeff Kivett, Division Director, Operations, Engineering and 
Construction, SFWMD, to explain water storage on fallow fields in the EAA.  Mr. 
Kivett responded that the farmers in the EAA have fields that are out of production 
during the year on which they store water and this year the SFWMD requested they 
store above the amount they needed for agricultural purposes and quantify how 
much storage capacity exists on those fields which turned out to be about 25,000 
acre feet. 
 
Barbara Miedema stated that in prior years there hadn’t been enough water to store 
on fallow fields which limited their ability to grow their planned rice crop. Ms. 
Miedema commented that ASR was a good source of carry-over storage since 
waters held in reservoirs evaporates.  
 
Kimberly Lawrence, alternate for Commissioner Harford, commented that the Upper 
Chain of Lakes system was at storage capacity and agreed that there is an 
opportunity for dispersed water storage in the region and stated that the headwaters 
was a good place to start, specifically Lakes Joel, Preston and Myrtle.  Ms. 
Lawrence added that S-59 structure should be upgraded to help with conditions at 
Eastlake.  Ms. Lawrence commented that water quality coming from the Kissimmee 



 10  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

Chain of Lakes is good and stated that the problem is in the volume of water being 
conveyed.   
 
Joe Capra supported continued state and federal funding for planned projects in the 
region and agreed that all parties should be part of a solution including expediting 
the approval of CEPP. Mr. Capra also agreed with the need for a comprehensive 
report which lists projects and schedules. 
 
Tommy Strowd, Assistant Executive Director, Operations, Maintenance and 
Construction, SFWMD clarified information given in his presentation regarding Lake 
Okeechobee releases and the probability of the volume and occurrence of winter 
and spring releases to the St. Lucie estuary through the next year. 
 
Ernie Barnett, Interim Executive Director, clarified that the CEPP agenda item going 
before the Governing Board is an approval of the release of the draft PIR that once 
approved, would then go through a forty-five day public comment period according 
to the Corps process. 
 
LTC Tom Greco, USACE Jacksonville District, clarified that there is no current crisis 
at the Herbert Hoover Dike and the Corps is managing the Lake in a manner to 
avoid possible future crisis and stated that in the short-term innovative solutions and 
projects need to be sought and agreed upon. LTC Greco recognized stakeholders 
for collaborative efforts in obtaining four completed Chiefs Reports which are 
awaiting congressional approval for long-run solutions.  
 
George Jones, Everglades Holiday Park, stated that the IRL-South project was 
approved in WRDA 2007 but is listed for implementation in 2025 and the Ten-Mile 
Creek project has been languishing for years and these two projects should move 
forward. Mr. Jones agreed that CEPP should be approved in order to move more 
water south. 
 
Ernie Barnett described the nature of the federal/state partnership and emphasized 
that many benefits have been received due to support of the Florida legislature, 
District Governing Board and Martin County. Mr. Barnett stated that the state of 
Florida has invested $1billion predominantly for land acquisition for CERP projects 
and that state funds together with Martin County funds of $438m have gone toward 
the purchase of all real estate for IRL-South including: C-44, C-23 and C-24 and 
71% of property for C-25 project. Mr. Barnett concurred that IRL-South is an 
important next step and stated that projects are planned in the District’s FY14 
budget for construction of the C-44 reservoir and stormwater treatment area and 
other components of IRL-South.   
 
Kurt Harclerode, alternate for Pam Keyes, asked Jeff Kivett, in light of Lee County 
asking for water during the dry season, if flows that could have been made to the 
STAs referenced in the after action report included the Caloosahatchee estuary. Mr. 
Kivett replied that no authority to release water to the Caloosahatchee was given at 
that time. Mr. Harclerode wanted constituents to know that constraints to sending 
water south are not based on water quality issues but on capacity.  



 11  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

5. Central Everglades Planning Project Update - Kim Taplin, Chief, Central Everglades 
Branch, USACE, Jacksonville District and Matt Morrison, Section Administrator, 
Office of Everglades Policy and Coordination, SFWMD Matt Morrison, Section 
Administrator, Office of Everglades Policy and Coordination and Kim Taplin, Chief, 
Central Everglades Branch USACE, provided an update on the status of the Central 
Everglades Planning Project (CEPP) 

 
WRAC Member Comment  
 
Ray Scott, Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (FDACs), 
stated that there is no environmental justification for moving water south at this time 
considering the amount of system-wide rainfall and asked if CEPP would help with 
the current challenges in the Indian River Lagoon.  Mr. Scott also expressed concern 
regarding the limited storage capacity of reservoirs and the possible public 
perception that CEPP implementation will be a quick-fix to resolve Florida’s water 
management issues. Mr. Morrison replied that there is an optimization and 
synergistic relationship in the implementation of CEPP, its features and operational 
components related to other components of CERP.  Mr. Morrison used C-44 as an 
example to illustrate that even as the C-44 was authorized as a stand-alone project 
to capture local run-off, adding CEPP will improve its performance as a stand-alone 
project and CEPP will also improve the conveyance of water south during dry times. 
Ms. Taplin added that CEPP will incrementally enhance CERP projects and reduce 
the duration of negative impacts on the system caused by extreme events. 
 
Ernie Barnett stated that analysis indicates that if CEPP implementation and its 
precursor projects were fully implemented there would be relief for current high-
water conditions.  Mr. Barnett said that if CEPP were in place today, the discharges 
to the estuaries would have been delayed and some local basin discharges 
controlled. Unknowns such as flexibility in the lake regulation schedule, progress of 
Herbert Hoover Dike repairs, completion of precursor projects such as IRL and 
others will ultimately determine how much CEPP will be able to optimize the 
capability of the system. 
 
Neale Montgomery asked if the District is required to implement CEPP as part of 
some binding agreement from litigation such as the Consent Decree. Ms. 
Montgomery also inquired about funding and implementation of projects previously 
planned, as described in Temperince Morgan’s earlier presentation, if CEPP is 
implemented.  Mr. Morrison responded that this particular project is not tied to any 
litigation although implementation will aid with meeting required water quality criteria 
required for water delivery to the system. Mr. Morrison also stated that previously 
scheduled projects would move in parallel over time and as part of the CEPP 
implementation and sequencing plan, projects will be built, as funding is available, to 
complement and maximize system benefits. Mr. Morrison also explained how habitat 
units were calculated in the cost-benefit analysis of CEPP implementation. 
 
Josh Kellam, The ESG Companies, asked if operational costs for CEPP had been 
evaluated and if those costs are part of the federal/state cost-share.  Mr. Morrison 
replied that long-term operational costs are currently being evaluated and would 
work as a state/federal 50-50 cost share in the long-term. 



 12  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

 
Barbara Miedema asked for an update from the last USACE/District meeting 
regarding status of outstanding key issues including the savings clause analysis, 
water supply/flood protection, cost share, construction cost estimates, project 
sequencing and avoiding Consent Decree violations by meeting water quality 
standards.  Mr. Barnett confirmed that the parties had come to agreement on all 
outstanding issues except the 50-50 cost share on the use of District owned and 
operated facilities. 
 
Joe Capra asked a series of questions regarding storage and pumping capacity in 
the south end of the system, cost sharing of operation and maintenance expenses 
and the comment period once CEPP PIR is released to which Ms. Taplin and Ms. 
Morrison provided timelines and due dates.   
 
Mike Collins discussed habitat units as related to Florida Bay. 
 
Jane Graham (inaudible) 
 
Mr. Morrison addressed questions posed by Mark Perry regarding environmental lift 
and benefits to habitat units and salinities found within a performance measure slide 
within the CEPP presentation. 
 
Adam Gelber, Atkins North America Inc., expressed concern regarding fresh water 
flow to the Florida Bay and emphasized the importance of maintaining proper 
salinities in the Bay from sources other than rainfall. 
 
Bubba Wade, US Sugar Corporation, asked if the District had the ability to prioritize 
and fund projects or if planned projects were mandated by another entity.  Mr. 
Morrison replied that the District Governing Board determines projects and priority.  
 
Mr. Morrison clarified for Don Fox, alternate for Chuck Collins, that the 2008 Lake 
Okeechobee Regulation Schedule would not change with CEPP implementation; 
however, distribution and timing would be affected. 
 
Public Comment 
 
John Marshall, Arthur R. Marshall Foundation, stated that NGOs were supportive of 
CEPP.   

6. Public Use Rule 40E-7 Rule Development Update - Dan Cotter, Section Leader, 
Land Stewardship, SFWMD  - ITEM DELETED  
Postponed until September 

7. Land Assessment Update - Ray Palmer, Section Leader, Real Estate, SFWMD 
Ray Palmer, Section Administrator, Real Estate Management, SFWMD provided an  
update on the Land Assessment Process for the west coast.  

 
WRAC Member Comment:   
 



 13  
 Water Resources Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes of the South Florida Water Management District – August 8, 2013 

 

Kurt Harclerode stated that the 412-acre North River Road property located in Lee 
County had previously been considered for a land swap and asked if that option was 
still viable.  Mr. Palmer responded that counties and local governments would be 
approached for their interest on acquiring land or land exchanges prior to land going 
to the public for surplus. 
 
Nancy Payton stated that a number of the parcels listed for consideration on the 
west coast could play an important role in the Caloosahatchee Visioning process.  
 
Jane Graham complimented District staff on their public outreach effort during the 
Land Assessment process. 
 
Neale Montgomery expressed some concern with depth on a particular parcel to 
which Temperince Morgan explained that the actual depth was 1000ft as opposed to 
the 150ft that Ms. Montgomery originally understood. 

8. General Public Comment 
None 

9. Adjourn 
Mr. Sargent adjourned the meeting at 4:35 PM. 


